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Long	Lake	Gold	Mine	Remediation	Project	
Public	Meeting	‐	September	13,	2017	

Questions	and	Answers	

Remediation	Plan	and	Construction	Sequence	

1. How	were	the	boundaries	of	the	contaminated	areas	determined?	

Contaminated areas were sampled using a grid style pattern that was extended 
to determine the extent of contamination both horizontally and vertically.  During 
excavation, we will continue to test the margins of the excavation to identify when 
the excavation has reached clean soil.  

2. What	time	of	year	will	the	project	occur?	Will	the	project	start	next	
year?	

The project will begin in the winter with vegetation clearing and road upgrades. 
There will be Endangered Species Act permit restrictions for work during 
sensitive periods of time for species at risk. The construction methodology will 
also determine when work can happen.  For example, dredging can only be done 
during ice-free periods. 

Pending the completion of environmental assessment requirements and 
obtaining the appropriate regulatory approvals, project work could tentatively 
start in January 2018 with upgrades to access into the site. It is anticipated that 
the project can be completed within 2.5-years.  

3. Will	the	snowmobile	trail	be	closed?	

Broder Dill Snowmobile Association Trail #4 (OFSC trail C108D) runs through the 
construction site. The access road will be widened to accommodate snowmobile 
use during the winter of 2018.  For 2019, the trail will be closed throughout the 
project area during construction. 

4. What	is	the	estimated	budget	for	this	project? 

The actual cost will be known once the successful bidder is chosen, and the 
estimated cost needs to remain confidential since the services have yet to be 
procured. 
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The EA process still needs to be completed before it goes to tender. We may be 
looking at 2018 for the end of tender process.   

5. Is	a	qualified	contractor	doing	the	dredging	in	the	lake	or	can	anybody	
do	this?	

Contractors will be scored on experience, expertise and technical ability as part 
of the tendering process. Typically, the General Contractor would subcontract 
specialty work to companies with the expertise and specialized equipment. 

The tender scoring process identifies the various specialized skills required and 
points are awarded depending on the expertise and experience provided by the 
bidder.  The tender will not be awarded on price alone.  The scoring process is 
outlined in the request for bids document so bidders know what expertise they 
are required to demonstrate.  Bidders must also demonstrate that they have 
successfully completed similar work by providing examples of similar project 
experience and references.  

Environmental	Monitoring	

6. Who	will	be	conducting	water	quality	monitoring?	

SNC Lavalin is the Construction Manager and will be providing continuous on-
site supervision and quality assurance / quality control sampling.  MNDM will 
oversee the project reclamation.  Water quality monitoring will be conducted by 
SNC Lavalin staff as well as periodic sampling by MNDM and MOECC staff.  

7. Will	water	quality	monitoring	be	looking	specifically	for	arsenic	or	will	
other	parameters	be	monitored	as	well?	

Arsenic will be measured to compare for historical data, but other metals will be 
collected as part of general chemistry.   

8. How	will	it	be	determined	if	water	quality	objectives	have	been	
achieved?	

During the reclamation period, water quality results will be compared to the 
values obtained from existing sampling stations located on the opposite side of 
the south bay adjacent to the camp properties, as well as the historic data 
obtained for these sites. Sampling has been conducted at these sites since 2012 
so we have a reasonable record of the range of contaminant concentrations that 
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are typically experienced in the south bay of Long Lake.  Results will be shared 
with the MOECC and SDHU.   

Once remediation is completed, expectations are that arsenic levels will drop 
immediately. Generally, in the spring, arsenic levels decrease from 30-40 ug/L to 
around 10 ug/L due to a flush of fresh water, and then steadily increase over the 
rest of the year as surface water flows over the tailings.  Once the remediation 
work is completed and the source of arsenic has been removed, it is expected 
that the arsenic will remain low after the spring freshet and continue to fall as it’s 
flushed out of the system.  If it does not, then we will need to go back and figure 
out why.  It is expected to take several years for the south bay of Long Lake 
water quality to approach the background levels found in the north end of the 
lake. It may never recover completely to a pre-mining condition.  Arsenic 
concentrations at the north end of Long Lake (Moxam’s Landing) are typically 
less than 1 ug/L (ppb).  It’s not clear if that is achievable in the south bay; 
however, we are expecting arsenic concentrations to meet the PWQO and the 
Drinking Water Standard.  

9. There	is	a	long	lag	time	before	results	of	water	quality	monitoring	are	
available.	How	will	affected	residents	be	notified	if	water	quality	
parameters	are	exceeded?	

Trigger values for arsenic will be established in consultation with the Ministry of 
Environment and Climate Change (MOECC) and the Sudbury District Health Unit 
(SDHU).  Monitoring results will be shared with camp owners so they are aware 
of current water quality in the lake.  There are various ways we can do this 
including the current project weblink or the Ministry website.  

Generally, there is a five day turn-around time for water chemistry results; 
however, rush samples can be turned around in 24 hours.  Arsenic mobility 
during the cleanup will largely be in the form of increased turbidity and 
suspended solids (the arsenic will stick to the sediment).  Barriers such as silt 
curtains, sheet piling, or other means will be used to physically separate the work 
area from the rest of the lake, preventing arsenic from moving further into the 
lake during the clean-up.  Turbidity, conductivity, pH and dissolved oxygen can 
be measured instantly using hand held equipment and these parameters will be 
sampled more frequently and used to trigger additional laboratory analyses.  

Water quality monitoring will occur to ensure barrier effectiveness.  Should 
monitoring show that the barrier system is not effective, dredging will stop until 
the situation is resolved.  
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10. What	is	the	lifespan	of	encapsulation?	

The design life of the Linear Low Density Polyethylene (LLDPE) cover (i.e., a 
plastic material) is 100 years.  This material has been used for landfill 
construction for approximately 60 years, so there is fairly good data on design life 
and in practice is expected to last much longer than 100 years.   

The LLDPE cap will require long-term maintenance.  This is not a “walk-a-way” 
solution.  Deep rooted vegetation will still need to be removed regularly, and 
erosion will need to be monitored and controlled. MNDM manages a similar site 
in Timmins with a 60 ha cover, where we have to remove all deep rooted (i.e., 
woody) vegetation every 5-10 years.  On-going monitoring will be required for the 
Long Lake Gold tailings cover system.  

11. Engineering	consulting	firms	have	been	known	to	extend	a	2‐year	
project	to	4	years	or	longer.	How	will	MNDM	ensure	the	contractor	stays	
on	budget	and	on	schedule?	

The remediation work will be completed by the successful contractor who will 
provide a schedule as part of their bid.  Payment is typically milestone based and 
is not provided until the milestone is achieved providing a disincentive to drag 
things out or delay work.  The engineering consultant (SNC Lavalin) is providing 
on-site supervision and QAQC.  Their role is to ensure the remediation work is 
completed as per the design and to confirm that all contaminated material has 
been removed, as required under the contract.  They will not control the 
remediation schedule.  

Aggregate	Sources	and	Quantities	

12. How	much	fill	will	actually	be	required?	

Approximately 171,000 m3 of imported material is required including gravel, soil 
and general fill.  This is equivalent to approximately 11,400 truck-loads of 
material.  The material will be transported over the two year duration of the 
project.  The amounts presented are based on the worst case scenario assuming 
the maximum amount of fill is required and all fill must be imported.  

13. How	was	the	28	trucks/day	calculated?	This	average	does	not	include	
return	trips.		It	will	be	more	like	56	trucks	plus	diesel	fuel	trucks,	heavy	
equipment,	maintenance	trucks;	it	could	be	closer	to	70/day	–	at	least	
50‐60	trucks/day	staffing	plus	surveyors,	etc.	
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The 28 trips per day is an average based only on the one-way transport of 
aggregate using 200 work days per year (i.e., assuming no hauling on weekends 
and holidays or during the six-week ½ load restriction in the spring).  The 
transport of workers to site will typically be by personal vehicles such as pickup 
trucks and cars.  The mobilization of equipment to site, including service trucks, 
will be infrequent, as equipment is brought onto site to complete the reclamation 
work, and not typically removed until the reclamation work is completed.  The 
vast majority of the truck traffic will be the supply of aggregates.  

The 28 loads of material per day (56 trips) is an average.  The actual number of 
trucks on the road on any given day will depend on what phase of the project is 
taking place.  As mentioned earlier, this is a worst case scenario, assuming that 
all aggregate is imported to site from distant pits.  

14. Why	can’t	gravel	from	the	Round	Lake	pit	be	used?	

MNDM is discussing the purchase of aggregate from the Round Lake Pit located 
on Whitefish Lake First Nation (Atikameksheng Anishnawbek).  The Ministry has 
worked with Atikameksheng to identify the quantity and quality of aggregate 
resources available at the Round Lake pit.  The use of aggregate from Round 
Lake Pit would require significant access upgrades, which will have their own 
environmental consequences which must also be considered.    

MNDM has tried to identify aggregate sources that are closer to the project site.  
There are no aggregate deposits that will provide all of the required material 
within 5 km of the site. The closest site is on Wavy Trail and will only provide 
about ½ the quantity of material needed.  Efforts to find material on site have not 
identified any significant quantity of available material.  There are some small 
deposits, which we are still investigating, however they will not change the need 
to import fill significantly.  

Specific material requirements, such as top soil, are not available locally and will 
need to be imported to site.  

15. How	did	MNDM	find	50,000	tonnes	of	top	soil?	

An estimated 30,000 m3 of topsoil (or organic medium) is required to vegetate 
the reclaimed areas including the Wetland.   We are working to reduce this 
number.  In some cases, silt and clay are available locally and can be amended 
with fertilizers and compost to provide a medium for vegetation.  Where material 
is applied near or in the water, only clean topsoil can be utilized.  
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Suppliers in the Valley have confirmed that they can provide the required quantity 
of material.  

16. Can	rock	be	crushed	into	aggregate	and	used	for	the	project?	

Crushed material could be used for some of the applications.  We will have a 
need for riprap armouring for drainage swales and road upgrading.  The use of 
crushed material as fill is less desirable since it’s typically not conducive to 
supporting vegetation; however, it would address some of the aggregate needs 
on site.  

Site	Location	and	Access	

17. Who	will	be	responsible	for	damage	to	the	roads	during	the	
rehabilitation	of	the	mine	site?	After	grading,	Tilton	Lake	Road	gets	
bumpy	only	within	four	days	of	residential	traffic	volume.		Will	MNDM	
post	$5	million	‐	$10	million	bond	with	City	to	ensure	roads	are	
maintained	adequately.			

With the municipal limits, the City of Greater Sudbury is responsible for the care 
and repair of public roads.  MNDM will work with the municipality regarding 
issues with the roads. 

In unorganized areas, MNDM will work with MTO to ensure the road will be left in 
a suitable condition after the rehabilitation work is completed. 

Bonding is typically required to provide protection in the event that the company 
goes bankrupt.  The risk of the Province of Ontario going bankrupt is low.  It is 
unlikely that MNDM will be asked to post a bond with the City of Sudbury or the 
Local Roads Board. 

18. Any	there	any	plans	to	upgrade	roads	first	before	the	project	starts?	In	
their	current	condition,	two	large	trucks	cannot	pass	each	other	safely	
along	certain	sections	of	the	roads.	The	roads	will	need	to	be	fixed	first	
since	a	lot	of	it	is	all	clay.	

MNDM will need to discuss the current conditions of the roads with the 
appropriate roads authority (i.e., City of Greater Sudbury and the Local Roads 
Board / MTO)	and take direction from them regarding what work will be required 
before hauling can occur. 
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19. Twenty‐five	years	ago,	MNDM	was	supporting	an	application	for	a	
quartz	quarry	that	would	result	in	material	being	hauled	on	Tilton	Lake	
Road.		Tilton	Lake	Road	was	not	fit	for	this	traffic	because	it	was	
considered	a	quiet	and	peaceful	camp	road.		The	Long	lake	Gold	Mine	
project	is	2‐3	years	with	50‐60	trucks/day.		There	will	be	an	
environmental	impact.	

The Long Lake Gold Mine project is a short-term remediation activity, and not a 
long-term operation. Environmental impacts will be mitigated as much as 
reasonably possible through the identification of local sources of aggregate, 
restricted hours for transporting material, and on site efforts to reduce the 
quantity of aggregate required.  However, some of the aggregate material must 
be sources off site since the quantities identified near the project (within 5 km) 
are insufficient and specific materials such as topsoil are not available locally.  
The impact can be mitigated however, it is unlikely it can be eliminated 
completely.  

20. If	someone	has	a	complaint	regarding	road	conditions,	whom	do	they	
call?	If	bumpy	roads	need	a	grader,	whom	do	we	call	to	have	them	fixed?	

Within city limits, call 311 and explain your concern.  You will be directed to the 
appropriate department.  Outside of the City, contact the Local Roads Board. 

21. There	are	safety	concerns	on	Tilton	Lake	Road;	for	example,	at	the	
bottom	of	a	hill	and	a	rock	curve	at	Lohi	Lake.		There	are	blind	spots	
along	the	road.		There	is	also	the	presence	of	pedestrians	and	cyclists.		
Trucks	activity	may	be	limited	to	8	am	to	6	pm,	but	school	buses	still	
affected	in	the	afternoon.		How	will	these	impacts	be	mitigated?	

MNDM recognizes that the hauling of aggregate on public roads is of concern to 
the local community, and has been looking at ways to minimize impacts to 
potentially affected residential areas, including remediation approaches that 
reduces the amount of aggregate needed, identifying potential sources of 
aggregate closer to the project site, and subjecting truck traffic to MTO and 
municipal regulations and by-laws pertaining to noise, speed and tarping loads to 
reduce dust. 

MNDM will work proactively with the City and the Local Roads Board to mitigate 
concerns and address issues.  Problem areas can be flagged and the 
Contractors made aware and take precautionary measures.   
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Once a contractor has been selected through the tendering process, the details 
of the mitigation measures and contractor obligations will be shared publically. 

22. It	sounds	like	a	decision	has	already	been	made	to	use	Tilton	Lake	Road.		
Historically,	the	mine	ore	trucks	went	through	Atikameksheng	to	the	
Long	Lake	Gold	Mine	site,	so	there’s	already	a	road	through	Whitefish	
Lake	First	Nation	(Atikameksheng	Anishnawbek).	It	was	graded	9‐10	
years	ago,	and	there	was	a	wood	culvert	in	use.	

Right now, the only existing access is Lakes End Road (off Wavy Lake Road and 
Tilton Lake Road).  Based on our consideration of alternatives, it is the proposed 
or preferred route, however, no final decision has been made yet. Until the EA is 
completed, no approvals or permits can be issued. 

We are still actively consulting with Atikameksheng about the potential to 
upgrade and use the former mine road through the reserve. The road through the 
community will require significant upgrading, including the installation of two 
water crossings. Currently, from Highway 55, one can only drive as far the river 
flowing into Round Lake from Long Lake. 

The last 550 m (½ km) section of the former access to the gold mine is located 
along the lakeshore and is too narrow to accommodate large trucks. It will require 
blasting to make it wide enough for two side-by-side vehicles.  It also runs along 
the shore of Long Lake and would result in additional environmental impacts, 
including a negative effect on aesthetics for lake users and residents in the area. 

23. Will	recreational	use	of	the	area	be	restricted?	

MNDM will be asking MNRF to restrict public access on the Mine Access Road to 
nothing larger than an ATV.  Currently, larger trucks and SUVs are accessing the 
site and they damage the access road and have the potential to damage the 
reclaimed site.  ATV access to the reclaimed areas (e.g., the capped tailings 
impoundment) will be restricted to the extent possible.  Atikameksheng 
Anishnawbek may also request that unauthorized travel onto the Reserve also be 
restricted.  

MNDM has been in discussions with the snowmobile club and they will continue 
to use the Mine Access Road in the future; however, they will have to route the 
current trail through the mine site around the rehabilitated areas.  The club is 
aware of this and has already started to work on revising the trail.  
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24. Can’t	the	project	be	extended	so	that	the	traffic	will	only	be	10	trucks	
per	day	to	stockpile	aggregate	before	the	remediation	work	occurs?	

Prolonging the reclamation process has other environmental impacts. While the 
site is being reclaimed, the Tailings Impoundment and excavation areas remain 
open and collect rain and snowfall.  This water requires treatment before being 
released to the environment.  The longer these areas remain open, the longer 
water treatment is required and the greater the risk that water collecting in these 
areas could spill to the environment.   

Class	Environmental	Assessment	Process 

25. Did	the	Class	EA	for	the	project	address	Tilton	Lake	Road	impacts?		

MNDM is considering approaches to minimizing impacts to the local roads by 
looking for closer sources of material, reducing the quantities of material required 
for the project, and by placing restrictions on haul traffic on municipal roads.  

These approaches to addressing and mitigating concerns will be reflected in the 
EA documentation.   

26. Who	is	responsible	for	the	conducting	the	Environmental	Assessment	
process	and	preparing	documentation	for	the	Long	Lake	Gold	Mine	
project?	

MNDM is the proponent for this project and has prepared an EA project 
document, which is publically accessible.  The document describes the self-led 
process for screening for potential impacts, identifying alternatives and evaluating 
mitigation measures; for concerns such as species at risk, road mitigation, etc.  

27. How	is	the	upgrading	of	the	road	through	a	protected	area	permitted?	

MNDM has been working with the Sudbury District MNRF office to ensure that 
requirements under MNRF’s Class Environmental Assessment for Provincial 
Parks and Conversation Reserves have been considered in MNDM’s 
Environmental Assessment process. A Memorandum of Understanding is being 
prepared between the two ministries that will provide clear expectations on how 
work will occur within the conservation reserve in order to minimize the loss of 
mature red pine and cedar, which are the values of conservation interest 
identified for the protected area. 
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28. September	24th	is	the	deadline	identified	in	the	Notice	of	Completion.		
Does	that	mean	that	consultation	will	be	completed	on	this	date?	

The 30-day comment period is a minimum requirement under the Environmental 
Assessment Act to ensure that the public has had an opportunity to identify any 
new concerns that may not have been identified during the EA process. 
Consultation beyond the deadline may continue in order to resolve outstanding 
issues.   

MNDM will not be going to tender with the project until the Environmental 
Assessment process has been completed and a Statement of Completion has 
been issued.  

29. Will	all	issues	be	resolved	at	the	end	of	the	EA	process?	

Not necessarily.  MNDM will try and mitigate concerns to best of our ability.  We 
will take comments and document them in order to satisfy the EA process. 

Public consultation for an Environmental Assessment process is not a 
consensus-based or democratic approach to making decisions. It is a means to 
ensure we have identified all concerns and issues, so that we can make fair and 
balanced decisions in determining appropriate mitigation within the project 
design. We will review comments received, address and/or mitigate as best we 
can, and then notify people as to when and how we will be moving forward with 
the project. 

30. Is	the	wetland	restoration	being	done	to	address	impacts	to	species	at	
risk?	

No.  Impacts to species at risk will be authorized through a health and safety 
permit under the Endangered Species Act that will have conditions for minimizing 
negative effects. Wetland restoration is an opportunity to improve biodiversity by 
introducing marshland components to the ecosystem and to reduce the quantity 
of fill material that would be required to return the Wetland to its previous 
condition, which contained very little open water areas.   


